
 
 

Knox County Board  
Member Packet 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

May 27, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This packet contains the meeting’s agenda, accompanying 
documentation, and minutes of recent standing committee meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compiled by Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk 



KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN  JANE SMITH 
SARA VARNER    PAM COON 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD ON MAY 27, 2015 

 
 

In accordance with action taken at its April 22, 2015, regular meeting, 

the Knox County Board ordered that members of the Knox County Board 

will hereby meet in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on May 27, 2015, at the 

Knox County Courthouse, 200 South Cherry Street, Second Floor Main 

Courtroom, Galesburg, Illinois. 

Along with this notice is the agenda of matters to be discussed at said 

meeting.  The agenda can also be accessed through our web site at 

www.KnoxClerk.org. 

 

DATED: May 22, 2015             ______________________ 
                    Scott G. Erickson 

Knox County Clerk and 
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board 

 
 

 
REMINDER 

 
There will be a closed session to be held at 5:30PM prior 
to the regular Board meeting to discuss personnel and 
property issues. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 1 

 

Knox County Board 
 

Regular Monthly Meeting – May 2015 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois 

Main Courtroom, 3rd Floor 
May 27, 2015 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Special Events 

5:30 p.m.  Closed Session for Personnel and Property. 
   
Opening Ceremonies 
6:00 p.m.  Call to Order (Chairman) 
   

  Roll Call (Clerk) 
   

  Declaration of Quorum (Chairman) 
   

  Proclamation (Sheriff) 
   

  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America (Chairman) 

   

  Invocation (Rev. Leigh Nygard of the Bethel Baptist 
Church, Galesburg) 

   

  Additions to the Agenda (for discussion only) 
 
Public Comment 
 
Consent Agenda * (R/C) 
Item 1 Approve Minutes of the Regular and Closed Board Meeting on April 

23, 2015. 
Item 2 Approve Claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the 

Meeting of May 27, 2015 and other claims for per diem 
from Meetings. 

Item 3 Presentation Sales tax and various taxes for month of February 2015 in 
the amounts of $87,853.61 and $17,214.30 and public 
safety tax in the amount of $73,429.43. 

   
Items for the Chairman 
Item 4 Approve Acceptance of Resignation from County Board Member 
Item 5 Approve R/C Appointment to Maquon Fire Protection District Board of 

Susi Taylor. 
Item 6 Approve R/C Appointment to Spoon Valley Lake Sanitary District Board 

of Vinton Pease.  
Item 7 Approve R/C Appointment to Henderson Fire Protection District Board of 

David Hawkinson. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 2 

Item 8 Approve R/C Appointment to Altona Fire Protection District Board of 
John Andrews. 

Item 9 Approve R/C Appointment to Victoria-Copley Fire Protection District 
Board of Russell Krans. 

   
Report – Committee on Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk 
Item 10 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 11 Approve R/C Approve Franchise Renewal Agreement with Comcast 
Item 12 Approve R/C Approve WIRC Invoice for Transporting and Processing 

Residential Paint and Electronics Recycling Program. 
Item 13 Approve R/C Resolution Regarding Health Savings Account Contribution 

for Plan Year July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 
   
Report – Building Committee             
Item 14 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 15 Approve R/C Approve Payment to Midwest Service Group for Courtroom 

Renovation Project. 
   
Report – Committee on Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Mary Davis Home, and Animal Control. 
Item 16 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 17 Approve R/C Approve Upgrades to Current Security and Video System 

at Jail. 
   
Report – Committee on Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder 
Item 18 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
   
Report – Committee on Highway and Landfill 
Item 19 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 20 Approve R/C Resolution for Improvement on Knox County Highway 11 

Spoon River Bridge Replacement, Section 12-00103-01-
BR 

Item 21 Approve R/C Approve Local Agency Agreement for Federal 
Participation, County Highway 11 Spoon River Bridge 
Replacement, Section 12-00103-01-BR 

Item 22 Approve R/C Approve Local Agency Agreement for Federal 
Participation, Rural Traffic Sign Upgrade Program, Section 
14-00000-00-SG 

Reports – External Committees Assigned to Board Members 
Item 23 Presentation Knox County Board of Health (Davidson) 
Item 24 Presentation Galesburg Convention and Visitors Bureau (Bondi) 
Item 25 Presentation 9-1-1 Committee (Knapp) 
Item 26 Presentation Knox County Area Partnership for Economic Development 
Item 27 Presentation Prairie Hills Resources Board (Johnson) 
Item 28 Presentation United Council of Counties (Davidson) 
Claims Against the County – R/C 
Item 29 Approve R/C Opening of Budget for Line Item Changes. 
Item 30 Approve R/C Approve Budget Line Item Changes to Budget. 
Item 31 Approve R/C Claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of       

April 24, 2015 through May 27, 2015 (ordering that 
invoices be accepted and approved and that the County 
Clerk and County Treasurer be authorized and directed to 
issue County Warrants in payment of the bills) 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 3 

   
Statements of General Concern 
Item 32 Presentation Statements of General Concern from Board Members 

(Conducted in voting rank order.  No Debate) 
   
Announcements 
Item 33 Presentation The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, 

June 24, 2015, 6:00 p.m., at the Knox County Courthouse, 
Galesburg, IL 

   
Closing Ceremonies 
Item 34 Presentation Adjournment of meeting until next scheduled meeting of 

the Board. 
 
* CONSENT AGENDA:  All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Member or citizen so requests; in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will 
be considered separately. 
 
** Action item to be used only if previous Motion to Remove from Table is approved. 
 
VOTING CHART:  R/C = Roll Call Vote; Voice = Voice Vote; 2/3 = 2/3rds Vote 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Except for emergency personnel, please turn off all cellular telephones and paging 
devices during the meeting. 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
April 22, 2015 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF KNOX  ) 

 
 Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of the Knox County Board held at the Knox County 
Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois on Wednesday, April 22, 2015, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 The Meeting was called to order by County Board Chairman Brian Friedrich and upon 
roll call the following Members reported present: 
 
    District 1 Lyle Johnson  

District 2 Greg “Chops” Bacon 
District 3 Barbara Foster 
District 4 George Knapp 
District 5 Brian Friedrich 
District 1 Cheryl Nache 
District 3 Pamela Davidson 
District 5 Ricardo “Rick” Sandoval 
District 1 Richard Conklin 
District 2 Robert “Bob” Bondi 

    District 3 Trisha Hurst 
District 4 Shawn Pitman 

    District 5 Jeff Jefferson 
 
And those absent:  District 2 Russell Nelson 

District 4 David Erickson 
 
 Also present were State’s Attorney John Pepmeyer, Sheriff David Clague, County 
Treasurer Robin Davis, and County Clerk Scott Erickson. 
  
 Sheriff Dave Clague delivered the proclamation. Chairman Friedrich led the Members in 
the pledge to the flag. Rev. Dan Siems of the First Baptist Church of Galesburg delivered the 
invocation. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for additions or deletions to the agenda. There were none. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for public comments. There were none. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Johnson to approve the 
following items of the consent agenda: 1) minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on March 25, 
2015, 2) claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the Meeting of April 22, 2015 and 



2 
 

other claims for per diem from meetings, and 3) sales tax and various taxes for the month of 
January 2015 in the amounts of $85,835.63 and $16,711.76 and public safety tax in the amount 
of $72,483.68. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, 
Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich read aloud the Proclamation of May as Motorcycle Awareness 
Month, a copy of which is included in the packets. Motion was made by Member Bacon and 
seconded by Member Sandoval to approve this proclamation. A copy of this proclamation was 
presented to Member Bacon. Voice vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—(13). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried.  
 Member Bacon added that ABATE is all about education. Individuals from this chapter 
and others throughout the State have been trained to go into high school driving classes and 
make students aware of the presence of motorcycles on the roadways.  
 
 6:39 p.m. Member Bondi left the Meeting. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Knapp to approve the 
reappointments of Tim Carlson and Bob Hennenfent to the Oneida-Wataga Fire Protection 
District. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, 
Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 
 
 Matt Schueler, Senior Manager of Wipfli, LLP of Sterling, Illinois presented the auditor’s 
report FY2014. Materials were distributed to the Board Members. Mr. Schueler stated that there 
had been detailed meetings with County Clerk Scott Erickson, County Treasurer Robin Davis 
and the Administrator of the Health Department, Michelle Fishburn. There are specific auditing 
requirements for the Health Department since they received federal funds of approximately 
$2,300,000 for the previous year. There was also a specific audit of the Circuit Clerk’s Office. 
There were no findings. 
 A two year comparison of the County’s finances provides insight into how the County is 
doing. Total amount of the County’s assets is approximately $103,000,000. A large portion of 
the County’s assets are the capital assets of approximately $61,000,000, which includes such 
things as roads and bridges. Cash and deposits are recorded as approximately $28,000,000. 
Approximately $7,000,000 is reserved for the landfill closure and post closure liability. 
Regarding net position, those funds are recorded in the amount of $76,500,000. The unrestricted 
amount is $3,400,000. The majority of the County’s resources are allocated for specific 
purposes, not the County’s general fund. From the previous year the County’s net income 
increased by $1,100,000. Investments are comparable to the previous year.  
 Regarding the County’s deposits and bank accounts, all of those funds are secure. The 
general fund did decrease before transfers by $1,700,000. This amount is approximately what the 
County was anticipating, as the projected amount was $1,800,000.  
 Next year a new accounting standard will be adopted with respect to pension funding. 
The County is fully funded with respect to the IMRF pension.  
 The number of days in the operating general fund for 2014 is 65 days as compared to 
2010 and 111 days. If the County were to quit receiving funds, this is how long the general fund 



3 
 

could last. The Governor’s new changes in taxes could have a significant impact on the County’s 
general fund in the coming year.  
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Davidson to approve the 
County Audit FY 2014. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(12). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 
 The Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk Committee report was presented 
by Committee Chairman Greg Bacon. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included 
in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 
resolutions on the deed of conveyance for PIN 99-02-301-014, and PIN 99-14-276-009. Member 
Bacon stated that this is a normal process to restore these properties to the tax rolls. Roll call vote 
is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, 
Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Nache to approve the 
annual dues to NACo (National Association of Counties) in the amount of $1,058.00. County 
Clerk Scott Erickson stated that one of the benefits of this organization is the discount drug 
prescription cards which are available at no cost. This organization also works with the County 
to secure grants. Additionally, they are a legislative watchdog group who monitor a lot a federal 
level legislation and share this information with the County. They are an asset to the County and 
he recommended approval of these annual dues. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman 
and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve 
health/dental insurance for 2015-2016 to include a $750 health savings account. Member Bacon 
stated that this will move all County employees to one plan. Under terms of the new plan, the 
annual deductible will increase from $1,000 to $1,500. The premiums will remain the same 
amount. It would be a good idea to make the NACo discount prescription cards available to 
County employees to help defray the cost of prescriptions. Under this insurance plan, the cost of 
the some of the prescriptions will increase. 
 Member Jefferson stated that he wanted the employees to know that the County Board is 
trying to do something to offset insurance costs, by offering the HSA accounts. This will help the 
employees. 
 Member Bacon reported that the County had not raised the insurance premiums for three 
years in a row. The deductible is increasing by $500.00 and the County is offering a HSA 
account of $750.00. Initially when this self insurance plan was established the employees were 
told that when the plan started making money, the County would try to give back a portion of 
this money. The finance committee decided not to lower premiums. There could be a bad year 
coming and premiums would have to be increased. He would rather not have a “rubber band 
effect.”  
 



4 
 

 Roll call vote to approve health/dental insurance for 2015-2016 to include a $750 health 
savings account is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, 
Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 The Building Committee report was presented by Building Committee Co-Chairman 
George Knapp. The committee minutes and the monthly reports are included in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Foster to approve the 
purchase of chairs for the Courtroom renovation project in the amount of $6,082.00. Member 
Knapp stated that this is $3,000 less than what it was. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: 
Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, 
Pitman and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 The Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Animal Control, Mary Davis Home, and Annex Committee 
report was presented by Committee Chairman Ricardo Sandoval. The monthly reports are in the 
packets. The County Jail currently houses 6 federal inmates. The current census at the Mary 
Davis Home is 28 and 3 of those are Knox County residents. 
 
 The Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder Committee report was 
presented by Committee Chairman Jeff Jefferson. These monthly reports are included in the 
packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Nache to approve the 
appointment of Administrative Adjudication Hearing Officers of Wayne Statham and Chad Long 
at an hourly rate of $135.00. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, 
Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—
(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 The Highway and Landfill Committee report was presented by Committee Chairman 
Shawn Pitman. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the packets. The new 
roof on the highway department office building has been completed. The highway project on 
County Highway 4 is expected to be completed at the end of May. Knox County Highway 
Engineer Mr. Ratermann is being installed as president of the National Association of County 
Engineers and only the second Illinois resident installed since 1956. His father also served as 
president of this organization.  
 Last month the landfill took in 6908 tons with a total tipping fee of $242,260. As landfill 
funds were transferred to other funds, the landfill completed that month with a negative balance 
of $88,741.  
 The committee did discuss the safety factor at the intersection of County Highway 2 and 
County Highway 6. Mr. Ratermann looked into additional signage to inform motorists to “Stop 
Ahead.” According to IDOT criteria, this intersection does not meet the requirements to be a 4 
way stop. 
  
 Member Davidson presented the monthly report from the Knox County Board of Health. 
They will be hiring some additional personnel to handle the requirements of some new federal 
grants. They continue to also research new grants for the Health Department. Illinois is pushing 



5 
 

the “Yellow Dot Program.” If a yellow dot is displayed in the vehicle, this tells emergency 
responders, that the driver’s medical information is stored in the glove box of the vehicle.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich presented the monthly report from the Galesburg Convention and 
Visitors Bureau. They are still investigating getting some cameras on buildings or the 
overpasses. This will be shown on channel 7.  
 
 Member Knapp had no report from the 9-1-1 committee. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich presented the monthly report from the Knox County Area Partnership 
for Economic Development. They are still working on approving a logo. They are excited about 
Love’s coming to the County.  
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from the Prairie Hill Resource Board, The 
quarterly board meeting was held recently. They approved three small business loans totaling 
$358,000. They haven’t had any applications for awhile. There are some funds available for 
small businesses. Applicants must be in small communities, smaller than Galesburg and are not 
limited to agricultural businesses.  
 
 Member Davidson presented the monthly report from the United Council of Counties. 
She stated that the meeting will be held Monday, April 27th and she planned to attend.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich and County Clerk Scott Erickson noted that there was no need for 
agenda item 23, approve the opening of the budget for line item changes, and agenda item 24 
approve specific budget line item changes to the budget, as there were no line item changes to 
the budget. These agenda items were removed from the agenda.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Nache to approve 
claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of March 26, 2015 through April 22, 2015 
(ordering that invoices be accepted and approved and that the County Clerk and County 
Treasurer be authorized and directed to issue County Warrants in payment of the bills.) Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Davidson, 
Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
STATEMENTS OF GENERAL CONCERN 
 
 Member Johnson had no comments at this time. 
 
 Member Bacon commented that this insurance package represents a lot of hard work 
from everybody including the finance committee and the Treasurer’s Office. He thanked 
everyone who worked so hard. This is the best thing that the County could give back. Insurance 
is a fickle thing. There could be one good year followed by four bad years. 
 
 Member Foster and Member Knapp had no comments at this time. 
 



6 
 

 Chairman Friedrich stated that Member Pitman had contacted him about the possibility of 
establishing a committee to investigate consolidating resources with other communities. The 
coming governmental changes from Springfield will be hitting the County hard. Those interested 
in serving on this committee should contact him.  
 
 Member Nache, Member Davidson, Member Sandoval, and Member Conklin had no 
comments at this time. 
 
 Member Hurst wished everyone “Happy Earth Day.” 
 
 Member Pitman had no comments at this time. 
 
 Member Jefferson thanked Nursing Home Administrator Rachel Secrist for setting up a 
meeting with Senator Sullivan, one of the area legislators. There was some good information that 
came out of this meeting. There are a couple more meetings that are scheduled with area 
legislators.  
 
 The next Regular Meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 27, 2015, 6:00 p.m., at the 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Johnson to adjourn 
from this Open Meeting until the next scheduled Meeting of the Board. Voice vote is recorded as 
follows: Ayes—(12). Noes—(0). Motion carried. Open Meeting adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 



































































































































































































Page 1 of 1Knox County 
Payment Account Activity for April 2015

05/01/2015

$ 3,210.66BEGINNING BALANCE04/01/2015

Name On Account AmountAccountDate

 97.98Clark, Chapter 13 Trustee, Michael D2009-058004/13/2015

 670.00Perez, Mary2011-038904/17/2015

ENDING BALANCE $ 3,978.6404/30/2015



Knox County
Individual Account Status for April 2015

05/01/2015 Page 1 of 2

REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS

Clark, Chapter 13 Trustee Michael D Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(4/20/2014)

99-16-385-007

1691 BUSHMORE AVE., GALESBURG

2009-0580

2009, 2010, 2011Tax Years: 

LAWNVIEW ADDN LOTS 185 & 186Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 11,156.16

 2,220.0006/10/2013 Down Payment

 500.0010/11/2013 Payment

-1,460.1004/02/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

-1,259.9004/02/2014 Knox County Collector

 718.9001/13/2015 Payment

 97.9802/06/2015 Payment

 175.7803/12/2015 Payment

 97.9804/13/2015 Payment

Total In Account $ 1,090.64$ 7,345.52AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

Perez Mary Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(7/20/2015)

99-11-307-010

631 PECK ST., GALESBURG

2011-0389

2011, 2012, 2013Tax Years: 

PECK & WOOD'S ADDN SUB OF LTS 16-24 E 35' LT 35 ALL LT 36 & W33' LT 37 BLK 3Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 4,883.82

 900.0001/23/2015 Down Payment

 658.0002/17/2015 Payment

 600.0003/17/2015 Payment

 60.0003/17/2015 Payment

 670.0004/17/2015 Payment

Total In Account $ 2,888.00$ 1,995.82AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

============== END OF REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS ==============



Knox County
Individual Account Status for April 2015

05/01/2015 Page 2 of 2

SALE ACCOUNTS

================= END OF SALE ACCOUNTS =================

TOTAL PAID FOR ALL ACCOUNTS $3,978.64 





































































 

Nursing Home-Assessor-GIS-Zoning-Recorder Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

May 13, 2015 

 
Present:   Vice Chairman, George Knapp 
                  Members:  Bob Bondi & Cheryl Nache   

Also present, (at Chairman Friedrich’s request to make quorum):  Board 
Members:  Dick Conklin & Pam Davidson 

Absent:    Chairman, Jeff Jefferson 
        
Also Present:  Carol Hallam, County Recorder; Rachel Secrist, Nursing Home Adm; 
and Chris Gray, Supervisor of Assessments/Zoning Adm.  
 
     The meeting was called to order at 6:13 p.m. by Committee Vice Chairman Knapp 
and a quorum was declared with 4 members present.   
     Motion made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Davidson to approve the 
minutes of the April 2015 Committee meeting.  Approved unanimously. 
     There was no public comment. 
    
Administrative Reports 

 
Recorder 
     County Recorder, Carol Hallam reported and presented bills for her department: 

• Nothing new or exciting going on in the office going on right now. 

• Recorder’s bills were reviewed & a motion made by Member Bondi to approve 
for payment.  Seconded by Member Davidson.  Approved unanimously. 

 
Assessment, GIS, & Zoning 

     Supervisor of Assessments/Zoning Administrator, Chris Gray presented written 
reports for the Assessors, GIS and Zoning offices and bills for each department.  Gray 
reported main topics: 
 

• Assessment Office has been extremely busy since tax bills were mailed on April 
23rd.   

• 74 Certificate of Errors have been written to date to make corrections to 2015 tax 
bills. 

• Due to the 2014 General Election, one Board of Review member will have to be 
replaced.  A previous member has been contacted & may come back. 

• The new aerial photography has been 100% flown & is in the processing stage. 
• GIS Analyst, Bill Lotz created an online collector application for the Highway 

Dept. to collect data on work orders, such as missing or damaged signs & road 
issues.  It is being tested & will be tweaked for any issues found & then a final 
version will be completed. 



 

• The GIS web site has a new JavaScript map.  Lotz is working to develop it further 
& include more features. 

• There was no ZBA Hearing in May, but there is one hearing scheduled for June. 
• The Zoning Dept. continues to stay very busy.  Warmer weather has people 

starting new building projects. 
• The Zoning Dept. issued 30 building permits for April 2015 compared to 18 

building permits for April 2014. 
• Assessor, GIS & Zoning bills were reviewed & a motion made by Member Bondi 

to approve for payment.  Seconded by Member Nache.  Approved unanimously. 
 
Nursing Home 
 
     Nursing Home Administrator, Rachel Secrist reported and presented bills for the 
nursing home: 

• Secrist reviewed this month’s financial report with the Committee.  She stated 
that they received a credit from last year for IGP from HSA in the amount of 
$18,421.64. 

• There are currently 140 residents at the Nursing Home with 7 of them being 
skilled care.  There are 63 private residents & 70 Medicare patients. 

• Secrist gave an update on Health Alliance Connect, Molina & Medicaid DHS 
issues: 

o Health Alliance Connect – There is a contract in place, but they have yet to 
remit payment.  Health Alliance states it can take 60-90 days to process a 
claim & if corrections are needed, an additional 60-90 days.  A better 
contract regarding reimbursement for skilled & therapy claims needs to be 
negotiated.  More detailed information on Secrist’s report in packet.  
Currently have $395,000 outstanding with Health Alliance Connect 
through March of 2015. 

o Molina – There is no contract with Molina yet even though a request to 
begin the process of credentialing was sent in Sept. 2014.  First contract 
sent in Nov. 2014 was wrong application, but was not told this until last 
week.  New contract draft was sent by Molina 5/6/15, but was also wrong 
contract.  Now working with Duane Morris firm to help get things going 
with Molina.  More detailed information on Secrist’s report in packet.  
Currently $852,000 outstanding from Molina updated March 2015. 

o Medicaid DHS – Caseworker in Galesburg/Knox Co. can no longer be 
contacted.  Inquiries must be made through the Macon Co. office in 
Decatur & the office is terribly understaffed.  Multiple calls have to be 
made to actually get through to a person.  Applications for Medicaid 
assistance are taking 9 months or longer to get processed.  This month, 
started corresponding with Rob Lewis @ the Office of Inspector General.  
He has helped to get a few issues resolved.   More detailed information on 
Secrist’s report in packet.  Currently have $224,000 outstanding in 
Medicaid pending. 



 

• Secrist also reported updates on the Legislative Meetings that had been held with 
Senator Sullivan, Rep. Hammond, Rep. Moffitt & Senator LaHood.  She stated 
that all the meetings had been very helpful & promising.  Follow-ups had been 
received from Senator Sullivan, Rep. Hammond & Rep. Moffitt offering their 
continued assistance.  Senator LaHood suggested a letter be drafted for all 4 
legislators to sign & send out to pertinent officials in these sectors.  The letter is 
being worked on. 

• Tax Referendum Resolution Update – March deduction $54,000 / April 
deduction $418,000 = Total YTD $ 472,000 

• Nursing Homes bills were reviewed & a motion made by Member Bondi to 
approve for payment, seconded by Member Nache.  Approved unanimously. 

 
Old Business  
 Member Bondi requested an update on the Wi-Fi at the Nursing Home.  Secrist 
stated that everything was up & running as of the end of April & all seemed to be going 
fairly smooth with just a few little exceptions that were not the fault of the IT Dept. 
 
New Business  
 None 
 
     Vice Chairman Knapp reported that the next Committee meeting will be on 
Wednesday, June 10th, 2015 at 6 pm at the Knox County Courthouse Annex. 
 
     Motion was made to adjourn the meeting by Member Bondi, seconded by Member 
Nache.  Motion approved unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
       Chris Gray, Secretary 
        



 

ASSESSMENT / GIS / ZONING REPORT 

May 13, 2015 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OFFICE 

      We have been extremely busy in the office since tax bills were mailed out on April 

23rd.   Taxpayers have been calling regarding exemptions, tax bills increasing, etc.   

      During the period from when tax bills are mailed until the first installment the taxes 

are due, (June 3rd), is when we issue the most Certificate of Errors, (C of E’s).  These are 

certificates sent to the Treasurer’s Office to create a corrected tax bill.  The majority of C 

of E’s are written for exemptions that were not applied for in the previous year by the 

taxpayer.  IL State Statutes require us to issue C of E’s for exemptions until Judgment 

Day, which is usually sometime in late October, early November.  There are usually a 

few C of E’s issued for Township Assessor errors, and also for tax exempt properties 

that have been approved by the Dept. of Revenue since the Board of Review adjourned 

for the previous year.  To date we have issued 74 C of E’s, but I do have apx. 20-25 to 

prepare.  The Board of Review Members and myself have to approve and sign all C of 

E’s 

      One of our Board of Review Members has to be replaced.  The third member of the 

Board of Review is controlled by how the general election went the previous year per IL 

State Statutes.   The Board of Review: “shall consist of 3 members, 2 of whom are 

affiliated with the political party polling the highest vote for any county office in the 

county at the last general election prior to any appointment made under this Section.  

The third member shall not be affiliated with that same party.”  (35 ILCS 200/6-15)   The 

only County Office that had opposition in the November 2014 general election was the 

County Clerk’s office.  The party polling the highest votes was Republican, so I have to 

have 2 Republicans and 1 Democrat.  Each member serves for a 2 year term.  I have 

spoken to a previous Board of Review Member and he may be interested in coming 

back.  He will let me know by next month’s meeting. 

      I did attend the 2015 Spring County Officials Conference in Springfield April 27th 

through the 29th.  It was a very informative and beneficial conference.  Monday, I 

attended several very interesting educational sessions.  On Tuesday, we all went to our 

own affiliate group meetings.  Then, on Wednesday the Dept. of Revenue brought back 

their annual Supervisor of Assessments/Board of Review meeting.  The Department 

used to have this meeting annually, but has not held it for probably 10+ years.  It was a 

full day of information that will be helpful to my assessment, Board of Review and 

Property Tax Appeal Board work. 

 

GIS 

     Bill’s report is enclosed. 

       

 



 

ZONING 

      The Zoning Board of Appeals did not have a hearing in May, but there is one 

hearing on the schedule for June. 

      I have not had an opportunity to contact the attorneys yet who agreed to be our 

Adjudication Hearing Officers.  Things have just been too busy in our office.   

      The Zoning Dept. has continued to stay very busy.  With warm weather people are 

starting their new building projects.   We also have continued to have a few complaint 

calls.   

      The Zoning Office issued 30 permits for the month of April 2015 compared to 18 

permits for the month of April 2014. 
 

            Respectfully submitted, 

        Chris Gray, CIAO/CCO 

        Chief County Assessment Officer 

        Zoning Admin./GIS Dept. Sup 









Nursing Home Committee Meeting May 13th, 2015 

 

MMAI Update  
 

October census       Effective December 1
st

, 2014 

Medicaid (traditional) 72 residents    Health Alliance: 16 Residents 

      Molina: 28 Residents 

      Medicaid (traditional): 22 residents 

Medicaid Payment for October DOS $214,971                                 Medicaid Payment for Dec DOS $87,178       

      Medicaid Payment for Jan DOS $63,594 

Health Alliance Connect 

We do have a contract in place, but they have yet to remit payment. First batch of claims were denied 

for Incorrect Revenue Code. Those claims were corrected and re-submitted. I can check back after May 

1st to check the status of those corrected claims. 

Health Alliance Connect states it can take 60-90 days to process a claim because they have to get 

information from the State. (I’m assuming that means they need to get Patient Liability Amounts from 

the State).  

If the claim has to be corrected, it will take an additional 60-90 days to process the corrected claims.  

This contract was also signed in 2013 before MMAI existed, so past administrator wasn’t aware of the 

possible issues that would arise. We need to negotiate a better contract regarding reimbursement for 

skilled and therapy claims.  
We have $395,000 outstanding with Health Alliance Connect (updated 3/2015)  

 

Molina 

We don’t have a contract with Molina yet. A request was sent to Molina in Sept of 2014 to begin the 

process of credentialing.  

Initial paperwork wasn’t sent to us until 11/20/2014 after repeated follow up inquires. 

We received a call from Molina last week regarding our contract status and we’re informed that all the 

information/application we submitted was the wrong application. New contract draft sent to us on 

5/6/15. This, too, was the wrong contract (hospital v. provider). Currently working with Duane Morris 

firm which comes highly recommended from other county homes, CNHA and INHAA.  

We were able to set up a non-par provider payment system with Molina so we are able to bill them for 

custodial care 12/1/14- April. These claims will be sent out by the end of this week.  

 

We have $852,000 outstanding from Molina alone. (updated in March- includes custodial and skilled 

care)  

 

MMAI plans do not qualify for Bad Debt, so we cannot submit the Co-Insurance for any of those 

residents on our Cost Report and we will lose the bi-monthly sum of $4,571 we are currently receiving.  

Medicaid DHS issues 

We no longer are allowed to contact the caseworker in Galesburg/Knox County. All inquiries must be 

made through the Macon County office in Decatur. This office is terribly understaffed. We don’t have 

one dedicated caseworker for Knox County, so all questions go to a different representative each time. 



Nursing Home Committee Meeting May 13th, 2015 

 

Usually, the phone call is not answered in the first place and it takes multiple calls to reach someone. 

Family members have had the same issues when trying to contact this office.  

New Applications for Medicaid assistance are not being processed in a timely manner. What used to 

take 3-6 months, is now taking up to 9 months or longer. We just got 1 application approved as it was 

routed to another county according to the representative I spoke to in Decatur.  

We still have $224,000 outstanding in Medicaid Pending, a total of 13 Applications with no response. I 

can’t even get an answer on the status of those pending applications. By phone I was told that “they 

don’t have time to tell me the status” and by email I was told it would take 4-6 weeks to get a response 

to my email on whether the application is still pending, denied, requesting more information, etc. (See 

attached). 

May Update:  We have been corresponding with Rob Lewis @ the Office of Inspector General. He is the 

head of the policy/procedure department and works with DHS, Managed Care Contracts and HFS. He 

was able to answer our inquiries regarding our pending residents, as well as resolve a few issues. We 

have 5 residents we have not received payment for since December. He has resolved these issues and 

those payments should be forth coming.  

He also provided us with a few more contacts with the billing office for specific cases. Unfortunately, the 

issue at DHS- Macon County Hub is still not resolved and he doesn’t have a hand in that sector.  

 

Legislative Meetings- Review 

 

Since the last committee meeting, we have successfully met with all 4 Legislators in our region:  

Senator John Sullivan- April 13
th

 

Rep. Norine Hammond- April 27
th

 

Rep. Don Moffitt- April 27
th

 

Senator Darin LaHood- May 11
th

 

 

All of these meetings were very helpful and promising. I believe all 4 of these individuals played a part in 

the strides we have made with Molina and the Medicaid office. We have received follow-ups from 

Senator Sullivan, Rep. Hammond and Rep. Moffitt, offering their continued assistance. We will not 

hesitate to contact them with further issues.  In our meeting on Monday, Senator LaHood suggested we 

draft a letter for all 4 legislators to sign and send out to pertinent officials in these sectors. We are 

working on that and will hopefully have that completed and sent out prior to the May Board Meeting.  

 

Thank you to all the Board members who made phone calls, sent emails/letters, 

or attended any of these meetings. Having County Board Members reaching out 

and showing their support made all of the difference. Thank you!  
 

Tax Referendum Resolution Update 

 

March Deduction: $54,000 (cover February bills)  

April Deduction:   $418,000 (covers March bills)  

Total YTD:      $472,000 

 

















































































































































































KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN   SARA VARNER 

PAM COON    JANE SMITH 
 

 

Knox County Board and Committee 
Meetings 

 
May 2015 

 
The following is a list of the meetings of the standing Committees for the Knox 
County Board for the above referenced month. 

 
 
Building Committee 
 May 12, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30PM 
 
Nursing Home-Assessor-Zoning-GIS-Recorder Committee 

May 13, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room. Starting at 6:00PM 
 
Sheriff-Jail-Courthouse-Mary Davis Home-Animal Control-Annex Committee  

May 18, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room. Starting at 6:00 PM 
 
Highway-Landfill Committee 

May 19, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 
Finance-Insurance-Treasurer-Judicial-Clerk Committee 

May 20, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 (Bills available for review at 6:00PM prior to meeting.) 

 
Knox County Board Meeting – Regular Meeting 

May 27, 2015 at the Knox County Courthouse.  Starting at 6:00 PM 
 

Outside Committees 
 
Knox County Veterans Assistance Commission Meeting. 

May 11, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:00 PM. 
  
Board of Health Meeting. 
 May 14, 2015 at the County Health Department. Starting at 7:00PM. 
 
 


	Board Packet Cover - May 2015
	Board Call - May 2015
	Agenda - May 2015
	Board Minutes - April 2015
	Closed Board Minutes - April 2015
	Action Item - Resignation of Russ Nelson
	Action Item - Appointment ot Maquon FPD
	Action Item - Appointment to Spoon Valley Lake Sanitary Dist
	Action Item - Appointment to Henderson FPD
	Action Item - Appointment to Altona FPD
	Action Item - Appointment to Victoria Copley FPD
	Finance Committee Minutes - May 2015
	Closed Minutes - Finance Committee - May 2015
	Financial Reports - May 2015
	Trustee Report - May 2015
	Action Item - Comcast Franchise Agreement Revised
	Action Item - WIRC Recycle Program Invoice
	Action Item - Resolution on HSA Contribution
	Building Committee Minutes - May 2015
	Action Item - Payment to Midwest Service Group
	Sheriff Committee Minutes - May 2015
	Sheriff Department Report - May 2015
	Mary Davis Home Report - May 2015
	Action Item - Upgrade Video at Jail
	Nursing Home Assessor Committee Minutes - May 2015
	Assessment Zoning Report - May 2015
	GIS Report - May 2015
	Nursing Home Report Update - May 2015
	Nursing Home MMAI Update
	Nursing Home Report - May 2015
	Highway Department Report - May 2015
	Action Item - Budget Line Item Changes - May 2015
	Action Item - Summary Sheets - May 2015
	Meeting Calendar - May 2015

	Return to agenda: 


